
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health,  
Councillor Carl Maynard 
 
FRIDAY, 24 MAY 2019 AT 10.00 AM  
 
COMMITTEE ROOM - COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
AGENDA 
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Member on 8 January 2019  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosure of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
3   Urgent items   

Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda. 

 
4   Consultation on Adult Social Care and Health savings proposals for Working Age Adults 

and subsidy of Meals in the Community  (Pages 5 - 8) 
Report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health  
 

5   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 16 May 2019 
 
Contact Hannah Matthews, Democratic Services Officer, 01273 335 138,  
 
Email: hannah.matthews@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
 
DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health, Councillor Carl 
Maynard, on 8 January 2019 at Committee Room - County Hall, Lewes  
 

 
Councillors Daniel and Davies spoke on item 4 (see minute 13). 
Councillor Swansborough spoke on item 7 (see minute 15).  
 
 
10 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD MEMBER ON 27 NOVEMBER 2018  
 
10. The Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health approved as a correct record the 
minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2018.  
 
 
11 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
11.1 There were no disclosures of interest. 
 
 
12 URGENT ITEMS  
 
12.1 There were no urgent items.  
 
 
13 TRANSFER OF PHOENIX CENTRE OLDER PEOPLE'S DAY SERVICE FROM 
SUSSEX COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION TO EAST SUSSEX COUNTY 
COUNCIL  
 
13.1 The Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health considered a report by the Director 
of Adult Social Care and Health in relation to the transfer of the Phoenix Centre Older People’s 
Day Service from Sussex Community Development Association (SCDA) to East Sussex County 
Council, following an unsuccessful tendering process. The Lead Member was advised that this 
transfer will result in a sustained service which can be delivered at £71.67, a rate which is lower 
than the bid price of the tender which was received. Further information contained within the 
exempt report, listed as agenda item 7, was considered in conjunction with this report.  
 
13.2 The Local Member, Councillor Philip Daniel, was in attendance and spoke to this item. It 
was requested that a copy of the Service Plan is made available to Members.  
 
13.3 The Lead Member thanked the Sussex Community Development Association for its work 
in delivering the service at the Phoenix Centre since July 2014.  
 
13.4 RESOLVED to: (1) approve that the older people’s day service at the Phoenix Centre is 
delivered directly by the County Council from 1 April 2019; and 
     (2) delegate authority to the Director of Adult Social Care and Health to 
take any action they consider necessary to give effect to recommendation 1 to ensure a smooth 
transition for clients, carers and staff by 1 April 2019.  
 
Reasons 
 
13.5  Following an unsuccessful tender for the delivery of day services at the Phoenix Centre 
a robust financial appraisal was undertaken. The transfer of this provision to the council’s older 
peoples Directly Provided service (DPS) will ensure a sustained and continued level of service 
to clients and staff.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

 
 
14 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC.  
 
14.1 RESOLVED to exclude the public and press on the basis that if they remained present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), namely information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 
 
 
15 TRANSFER OF PHOENIX CENTRE OLDER PEOPLE'S DAY SERVICE FROM 
SUSSEX COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION TO EAST SUSSEX COUNTY 
COUNCIL  
 
15.1 The Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health considered exempt information 
contained within this report prior to taking a decision on agenda item 4 (see minute 13).  
 
15.2 RESOLVED to: note the contents of this report.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



               

Report to: Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

24 May 2019 

By: Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
 

Title: Consultation on Adult Social Care and Health savings proposals 
for Working Age Adults and subsidy of Meals in the Community 
 

Purpose: To seek Lead Member approval to consult on Adult Social Care and 
Health savings proposals. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Lead Member is recommended to agree that the Council consults for a 10 week period: 

i) On a proposal to withdraw the subsidy from the meals in the community 
service; and 

ii) On a proposed change in approach to supporting Working Age Adults 

 

1 Background 

1.1 Meals in the community:  

1.1.1 The meals in the community service enables people to have hot, chilled or 
frozen meals delivered to their home on a daily or weekly basis. The service is 
currently provided by a range of providers contracted through a framework agreement.  

1.1.2 At February 2019, around 750 people received a subsidy of £4.10 per meal on 
a full cost of between £4 and £8 per meal. In addition, two lunch clubs (28 clients) in 
the county receive the subsidy. 

1.1.3  The proposal would mean that people would pay the full cost of their meal if 
they wanted to carry on using this service. It is important to note that the proposal is 
not to close services, rather to stop offering the subsidy which is not means tested. 
The Council budgeted to spend nearly £500,000 on the subsidy last year.  

1.1.4 In line with the Care Act, information about services to all residents would 
continue to be offered and people will be supported to access services if they are 
eligible to receive support from Adult Social Care and Health. Under the Care Act the 
Council is not required to pay for, or subsidise, meals. However, it is possible that a 
small group of people may be eligible for additional support with their meals due to 
their disability or because they are particularly vulnerable.    

1.1.5  Nearly half of the clients who receive a subsidy are aged 85 years plus. Women 
are more likely to use the service (nearly two thirds of clients are female). Nearly three 
quarters of clients have a physical support need.  A full Equality Impact Assessment 
would be completed, alongside the consultation process, and to be considered as part of 
the final Member decision making process. 

1.1.6  In 2014, a consultation was undertaken when the Council considered removing 
the meals subsidy. At that point it was agreed to retain the subsidy while work was 
undertaken to move from a single contracted provider to a number of approved providers. 
The meals are now provided by four organisations. Discussions are ongoing with the 
providers about what the proposals might mean for them. Work will continue with the 
providers during the consultation to ensure people can take part and have their questions 
answered.  Page 5

Agenda Item 4



1.1.7  The consultation will help the Council understand issues including whether people 
would want to continue using meals in the community if the subsidy was withdrawn; how 
people would be affected by the proposal; and whether a small group of people may be 
eligible for additional support. 

1.1.8  The consultation will be available on our consultation hub website, which will be 
promoted to partners, providers, health and social care staff and residents. We will 
therefore write to everyone receiving the subsidy to let them know about the consultation 
and invite them to take part. 

1.1.9  It is proposed that the consultation would run from 28th May to 6th August 2019. 

 

2 Background 

2.1  Working Age Adults:  

2.1.1 The budgeted spend on this area of care was nearly £50m in 2018/19.  Should the 
proposals which it is recommended the Council consult on be enacted the spend would 
be reduced by £247,000 in 2019/20 and a further £248,000 in 2020/21 on support for 
Working Age Adults, which represents a 1% reduction over two years. 

2.1.2 The Council currently supports over 2,500 Working Age Adults receiving long-term 
support. In East Sussex, the proportion of working age adults who are offered long-term 
support is greater, and therefore spend is higher on providing that support, than similar 
local authorities. We also have a comparatively high number of working age adults, as a 
proportion of our population, who are receiving their support in a residential or nursing 
care setting.  

2.1.3 To identify the causes of this, an audit of 50 cases was undertaken. This work 
focussed on key assessment documents, reviews and support plans, alongside other 
case information, as required. The audit identified a number of practice areas where 
improvements can be made. This relates to existing ways of working and improving the 
quality and consistency of our assessment and support plans.  

2.1.4 The audit found that support plans can sometimes focus too much on services 
available and not on an individuals support needs. This can undermine work to 
personalise support and take a much broader approach to how this is delivered, beyond 
existing council funded services. It also indicated that people’s changing needs should be 
more keenly taken in to account when reviewing long term care packages. 

2.1.5 The proposal is to change our approach to supporting Working Age Adults by 
reducing the reliance on residential care and providing community based alternatives, 
and by also finding alternatives to funded care services for clients with lower levels of 
need. The average spend on Working Age Adults is significantly higher in East Sussex 
than in other south east councils. The intention is to deliver an overall level of support 
which is fair, reflects need and achieves a level of spend comparable to other councils. If 
the new approach was agreed any decisions to change care arrangements would be 
dependent on individual reviews that take account of a client’s specific circumstances. 
Some clients could however have their support reduced or removed. 

2.1.6 The consultation will focus on understanding the causes and issues that might 
impact on the need to establish new ways of working and achieving better and more cost 
effective outcomes for clients. For example,  

 do more people live in residential and nursing care because people can’t access 
sufficient community services?  

 do more people receive long term support because there is not enough focus on 
short term care that supports people to be more independent?  

Page 6



 can more use be made of short term care to help people to become more 
independent and use less long term support? 

 can ways be found to meet people’s needs more cost effectively, so that spend is 
more in line with other local authorities? 

2.1.7 The feedback received through the consultation process will be presented 
alongside an Equalities Impact Assessment, to inform Member decisions about the 
savings proposals.  

2.1.8  The proposed consultation will focus on understanding the strategic challenges we 
face in addressing the comparatively high spend in this area, ensuring that if a decision is 
made to proceed with the savings this work is undertaken in an effective way. 

2.1.9 Undertaking this consultation will be challenging given the high volume of clients, 
many of whom may not have close relatives to offer support. Careful thought will 
therefore be given to the way in which information is shared. In addition, details will be 
available on our consultation hub website, which will be promoted to partners, providers, 
health and social care staff and residents. Our priority will be to ensure that clients and 
their families can have their say.  

2.1.10  It is proposed that the consultation period would run from 4th June to 13th August 
2019. 

 

3 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

3.1 Lead Member is recommended to agree that the Council enters into a 10 week 
consultation on the proposal to remove the subsidy from meals provided by the Meals in 
the Community Service and to consult on a proposal to change the approach to 
supporting Working Age Adults. 

3.2 Feedback from the consultation and an Equalities Impact Assessment will then be 
considered as part of the decision making process on the proposals. 

 

KEITH HINKLEY 
Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

Contact Officer: Kay Holden, Interim Assistant Director 
Telephone Number: 01273 336518 
Email: kay.holden@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None 

LOCAL MEMBERS 

All Members 

Page 7

mailto:kay.holden@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Member on 8 January 2019
	4 Consultation on Adult Social Care and Health savings proposals for Working Age Adults and subsidy of Meals in the Community

